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Industries and Mines Department
Pursuant to Section 394(2) of the Companies Act,2013
Administrative Report on the working of Dholera International Airport
Company Limited for F.Y 2022-23

The state government has decided to develop an International Airport close to
Dholera Special Investment Region. The Proposed Dholera Airport project would
serve the logistic requirement of Dholera SIR besides handling the spillover traffic
of the existing Ahmedabad Airport in the future. The Proposed airport location is
ideally placed to serve the other big cities of the state including Vadodara, Rajkot,
Bhavnagar, Nadiad, Kheda, and Anand. It will also cater to the demand of the
Sanand-Viramgam area which is fast developing as an International Auto Hub. The
Proposed airport will propel airport-led economic growth in the entire region in line
with other Aerotropolis worldwide.

A brief description of the activities and work were done during the year is
as under:

1. In June 2022, the Cabinet Committee of Economic Affairs (CCEA) approved
the proposal for the development of Phase I of New Greenfield Airport at
Dholera, Gujarat at an estimated cost of INR 1305 crore, to be completed
within 48 months.

2. Accordingly, the work order was awarded to M/s Varaha Infra Limited,
Jodhpur on 13/07/2022 with the completion timeline of 28 months i.e. up to
June 2024 for Package-I of Phase-I works. Subsequently, the airport site was
handed over to the contractor for the execution of work on 28-07-2022.

3. Flood Mitigation Work by NWRWS&K Department, Government of Gujarat has
been completed to the extent of 85%.

4. In a meeting with Hon'ble Railway Minister and Railways authorities on a
proposal for High-speed Rail connectivity to Dholera Airport, it was decided
to go with the alignment of expressway and connect Dholera Airport with spur
line rail connectivity.

5. The Revenue Department, Government of Gujarat has issued GR no.
JMN1620/1422/A dated 20-04-2023 for allotment of 101 Ha Government
Land. The process of private land acquisition of 16.6008 Ha has also been
initiated.

As on March 31, 2023, the Airports Authority of India (AAI) has invested INR 77.27
Crore, Government of Gujarat (GOG) has invested INR 50.00 Crore and National
Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) has invested
INR 24.24 Crore as Equity Share Capital. Capital contribution )receive_gl___‘b){,_s
shareholders as Equity Share Capital has been deposited with GSFS.
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmyogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

Corporate Information

Board of Directors (As on 31.03.2022)
Sr. No. Name & DIN of Director Designation

1. Shri Sanjeev Kumar, I1AS Chairman & Nominee Director
DIN : 01866640
Shri Supreet Singh Gulati, IAS Managing Director & Director
DIN : 07591862
Shri Rajat Kumar Saini, IAS Nominee Director
DIN : 10264275
Shri J.T. Radha Krishna, IAS Nominee Director
DIN : 09210566
Smt. V. Vidya Woman Director
DIN : 08366688
Shri Dilip M. Sajnani Nominee Director
DIN : 10366167
Shri Sandip J. Sagale, IAS Nominee Director
DIN : 09002794
Shri Komal Bhatt Nominee Director
DIN : 09453556

Chief Financial Officer : Company Secretary :
Dr. Manoj Kumar Ms. Ekta Shukla (Till 11/11/2022)
Ms. Priya Makhija (From 01/03/2023)

Statutory Auditor : Statutory Auditor :

M/s Joy A. Baxi M/s. Nitin P. Mehta & Co
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Gandhinagar Ahmedabad

Secretarial Auditor : Bankers :
M/s. Samdani Shah & Kabra ICICI Bank Limited,
Company Secretaries Motera, Ahmedabad

Ahmedabad Union Bnak of India, Udhyog Bhavan,

Gandhinagar

Registered Office :
Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor,
Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector-10/A,Gandhinagar-382010
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmyogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 11™ (Eleventh) Annual General Meeting of the
members of M/s. Dholera International Airport Company Limited will be held on 06"
December 2023, at the Committee Room of Dhorera International Airport Company
Limited, Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3™ Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Sector-10A, Gandhinagar-
382010 through Video Conferencing at 11 :30 Am through Video Conferencing/Other
Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following business :

The link/ID for joining the meeting through Video Conferencing will be shared with the
Shareholders separately.

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

Item No.
1. Adoption of Financial Statements:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement (Standalone) of the

Company for the financial year ended 31%' March 2023 and the Reports of Board of
Directors, and Auditor thereon.

2. Appointement of Auditor :

To Consider the appointment and fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditor(s) of the
Company appointed by the office of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) for
the FY 2023-24 and to consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s)
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of M/s C R Sharedalal & Co (CAG Empanelment
No WRO0020), Chartered Accountants as appointed by the office of the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India (C&AG) as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the financial
year 2023-24 vide its letter no DIACL/Statutory Audit/2023-24/204 dated 11/10/2023, be
and is hereby taken note of;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or
Company Secretary of the company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters, and things as may be considered necessary, desirable, or expedient
to give effect to this Resolution.”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS :

3 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution :

‘RESOLVED THAT consent of the members be and is hereby granted for the
appointment of Shri Supreet Singh Gulati, IAS (DIN: 07591862), as a Director of the
Company who was appointed pursuant to Government Resolution No.
SPV/11/2010/521231/Part-3/1-1 (Part File) dated 23/11/2023 issued by Industries &
Mines Department, Government of Gujarat (GOG) and pursuant to section 152 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force), as an additional director and subsequently appointed as
Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors of
Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL)
Date: - 06/12/2023

Place: - Gandhinagar
Sd/-

Ms. Priya Makhija
Company Secretary
Membership No. 64227

Registered Office :

Block No. 1, A-2 Wing,

3" Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan,
Gandhinagar-382010
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NOTICE OF 11TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notes :

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. The Proxy form MGT-11, which is attached, can be
deposited with the Company at any time before the commencement of the
adjourned meeting, in view of shorter notice.

The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of Business at the adjourned meeting, is annexed hereto and
forms part of this notice.

In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA”) vide its General Circulars dated 08" April 2020, 13" April 2020, 05" May
2020, 13" January 2021, 14™ December 2021, and 05" May 2022 (collectively
referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) has permitted companies to hold the Annual General
Meeting (‘AGM’) through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means
(OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members.

With reference to General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 08™ April 2020, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint a proxy to attend and cast vote
for the members is not available. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to
appoint authorized representatives to attend the meeting through VC/OAVM and
participate thereat and cast their votes through the show of hands.

The Members can join AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting.

The attendance of the members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board
Resolution / Power of Attorney authorizing their representative to attend and vote on
their behalf at the Annual General Meeting.

In conformity with the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Explanatory Statement setting out at item no. 3 to be transacted at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) is annexed (Annexure — A) hereto.

Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported
by appropriate resolutions/ authority, as applicable.

In the case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is
higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory
Statements are open for inspection by the Members at the Company’s Registered
Office on all working days during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to
write to the Company at an early date, to enable the Management to keep the
information ready at the meeting.

Members may attend the AGM, by following the invitation link sent to their provided
email ID.

Since the Annual General Meeting is being organized through VC/OAVM, the route
map of the venue of the meeting is not annexed hereto.
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

ANNEXURE -A
EXPLANTORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM No. 3:

Shri Supreet Singh Gulati, IAS (DIN:07591862), Chief Executive Officer, Special Projects
(Dholera SIR and Mandal Bechraji SIR) was appointed as Director of Company pursuant
to Government Resolution No. SPV/11/2010/521231/Part-3/I-1 (Part File) dated
23/11/2023 issued by Industries & Mines Department, Government of Gujarat.

The Board of Director vide CR 05/23-24 have approved the appointed of Shri Supreet
Singh Gulati, IAS (DIN:07591862), as Additional Director of the Company. Pursuant to
section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the additional Director shall hold the office upto
the Annual General Meeting.

As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), every public company having paid up capital of
Rs. 10 Crore or more shall have Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager
and in their absence a Whole Time Director on the Board of the Company.

However, as per Article 111 (iii) of the Articles of Association (AOA) of the Company, a
Director can be appointed as Managing Director of the Company. Therefore, pursuant to
Section 196, Section 197, Section 203 read with Schedule V and Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force) and the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company
and subject to the consent of the Members in General Meeting, Shri Supreet Singh Gulati,
IAS has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company by the Board in its 49"
Board Meeting.

Hence, it is proposed to regularize the appointment of Shri Supreet Singh Gulati, IAS as a
Director and Managing Director of the Company.

Except Shri Supreet Singh Gulati, IAS, being an appointee, none of the Directors an Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested the
resolution set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice.

By order of the Board of Directors of

Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL)
Date: - 06/12/2023
Place: - Gandhinagar Sd/-
Ms. Priya Makhija
Company Secretary
Membership No. 64227
Registered Office :
Block No. 1, A-2 Wing,
3" Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan,
Gandhinagar-382010
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmyogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

To

The Members/ Shareholders of the Company,

The Directors of the Company have the pleasure of presenting the 11" Annual Report
on the business and operations of the Company together with the Audited Statement of
Accounts for the year ended on 31 March 2023.

Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL) was initially incorporated as a
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) by the Government of Gujarat on 20™ January 2012 for
the development of Greenfield Airport at Dholera, Ahemdabad. Subsequently, the
NICDIT (erstwhile DMICDIT) subscribed and became the Shareholder of 8% of the
Company’s equity. A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was signed with the Airports
Authority of India (AAl) in Vibrant Gujarat 2019, and accordingly, a Share Subscription-
cum-Shareholders Agreement (SSSHA) was signed on 25" March 2019 among Airports
Authority of India (AAl), Government of Gujarat (GoG), and National Industrial Corridor
Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) and shareholding of 51:33:16 of the
three partners in the Company decided. As AAIl has a majority stake in the Company,
DIACL has become subsidiary of AAl and is operating as a Joint Venture Company of
AAIl, GoG and NICDIT.

Shareholding Details of DIACL :

DIACL Shareholders (in Percentage)

NICDIT
16%

GoG
33%

(©)
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmyogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY :

The Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended on 31
March 2023 are summaried below:

(Amout in INR Lakh)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 Change in %

Income

Revenue from Opeations NIL NIL NIL
Other Income 889.24 920.21 3.36
Total Income 889.24 920.21 3.36

Expenses
Other Expeness 129.53 121.25 -6.82
Depreciation and Amortization 10.01 9.39 -6.60
Finance Cost NIL NIL NIL
Total Expenses 139.54 130.64 -6.81
Profit before prior period items and tax 749.70 789.57 5.05
Prior Period Items (Income)/Expense -2.66 0.43 718.60
Profit Before Tax 752.36 789.14 4.66

Current Tax (including tax related to earlier 193.15 205.16 5.85
years)

Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liability -0.20 -0.38 47.36
Profit /(Loss) for the Year 559.41 584.36 4.26

2. STATUS OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS :

The Government of Gujarat has decided to develop a Greenfield International Airport
close to Dholera Special Investment Region (Dholera SIR or DSIR). The proposed
Dholera Airport project would serve the logistic requirement of Dholera SIR besides
handling the spillover traffic of the existing Ahmedabad Airport in the future/upon its
saturation. The location of the proposed airport is ideally placed to serve the other big
cities of the State including Vadodara, Rajkot, Bhavnagar, Nadiad, Kheda, and Anand.
The airport would also cater the demand of the area like Sanand-Viramgam which is fast
developing as an International Auto Hub. The proposed airport would propel Airport led
economic growth in the entire region in line with other Aerotropolis worldwide.
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The Government of Gujarat (GoG) incorporated a company on January 20, 2012, viz.,
Dholera International Airport Company Ltd. (DIACL) to facilitate the development of
Dholera Airport Project. In March 2019, subsequent to signing the Share Subscription
Cum Share Holders Agreement (SSSHA), DIACL became JV of AAI, GoG and NICDIT
with a shareholding of 51%, 33% and16%, respectively.

2.1 A brief description of the activities and work done :

1. In June 2022, the Cabinet committee of Economic Affairs (CCEA) approved
the proposal on 14-06-2022 for the development of Phase | of New
Greenfield Airport at Dholera, Gujarat at an estimated cost of INR 1305
crore, to be completed within 48 months.

In June 2022, the CCEA after detailed deliberations has accorded their
approval for the development of the greenfield airport at Dholera as per the
recommendation of PIB, and accordingly, the work order was awarded to M/s
Varaha Infra Limited, Jodhpur on 13/07/2022 with the completion timeline of
28 months i.e. up to November 2024 for Package-l of Phase-l works.
Subsequently, the airport site was handed over to the contractor for the
execution of work on 28/07/2022.

NWRWS&K Department, Government of Gujarat has awarded the work for
Flood Mitigation Work outside Dholera Airport Boundary amounting to INR
41.03 crores to M/s LVJ Projects Private Limited, Ahmedabad, in June 2021
with the completion period of 15 months from the date of issue of the work
order and 85% work has been completed.

The tender for the work “Project Management Consultancy for Supervision of
the work of Development of Operational Area of the New Green Field Airport
at Dholera, Ahmedabad (Gujarat) i.e Runway, Taxiway, Apron, Perimeter
Road etc. i/c associated electrical works" has been awarded to M/s Aarvee
Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Pvt Ltd, Hyderabad on L-1
quoted amount INR 4,48,42,530.00 including GST w.e.f 15-03-2023.

In 41%' Board Meeting held on 10-03-2022, Board of Directors has accorded
the Administrative Approval and Expenditure Sanction of INR 3.50 Crores
including GST for the work of consultancy, Interior Design and construction
of the office block and the same proposal was dropped as approved in 46"
Board meeting.

The Revenue Department, Government of Gujarat has issued GR no.
JMN1620/1422/A dated 20-04-2023 for allotment of 101 Ha Government
Land and further, Collector Ahmedabad has sent the Draft Rehabilitation and
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Resettlement Award amounting to INR 55,83,51,572/- plus deviation for
private land acquisition of 17.2675 Ha. In 46™ Board Meeting (05-04-2023)
DIACL Board has given the consent to pay the award amount from the
DIACL for acquisition of additional private land and asked the Managing
Director to process the proposal for reimbursement of land compensation
amount, as mentioned above or actually paid, from GOG and allotment of
this private land to DIACL on the terms and conditions of earlier issued GR
dated 17-12-2018 i.e 30 years on token lease rent of Rupee 1 per annum
and further extendable upto next 30 years to DIACL.

As part of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) of FY 2021-22 (amount INR
14,68,081) and FY 2022-23 (amount INR 18,06,451), the Company has
undertaken the rural development project, to construct the Panchayat
Bhavan at Navagam village, and other welfare activity as an ongoing project.

In a meeting with Hon’ble Railway Minister and Railways authorities on a
proposal for High speed Rail connectivity to Dholera Airport, it was decided
to go with the alignment of expressway and connect Dholera Airport with
spur line rail connectivity. Accordingly, AAl vide letter no.
AAI/PLG/501/Dholera/592 dated 12" May 2023 has agreed the proposal of
Railway for connecting Dholera Airport by Spur line with Shuttle Train.

DIACL has signed CNS-ATM Agreement with Airports Authority of India on
29-05-2023.

In the 43" DIACL Board Meeting, upon the advice of the Chairman, the
Board deliberated to prepare a complete Master Plan for the airport complex
for the next 30-50 years for the best utilization of the land and to generate
non-operational revenue by engaging a reputed design consultant. The
Managing Director, DIACL proposed that with a good master plan, a proposal
may be submitted to the State Government to allocate further land adjacent
to the airport boundary for development and utilization of a commercial area.
The Board advised the Managing Director to appoint a proficient master plan
consultant for master planning, if possible, through reputed organizations.
Accordingly, a Request for Proposal (RFP) document was published on 30-
06-2023 on CPP Portal for developing of a comprehensive master plan for
1500 Ha land on city side and a detailed master plan for 500 Ha land and
market in Phase |.

DIACL has requested to DSIRDA for allotment of additional 400 Ha land for
city side commercial development of airport.

Comments of AAl and NICDIT on observation of GoG on Addendum to the
Share Subscription-cum-Shareholders Agreement and State Support
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Agreement have been received on 24-07-2023 and same have been
forwarded to GoG for approval.

Government of Gujarat has requested GIDB for onward vetting of the said
agreements through the legal consultant to safeguard the interest of the
Government of Gujarat and other Shareholders, by examining the implication
of clauses mentioned in the said agreements. GIDB has appointed Shri
Gurusharan Virk, Lawyer and Consultant for the same.

The Board of Directors in their 46™ Board Meeting dated 05/04/2023
approved to increase the authorized share capital of the company from Rs.
200 Crore to Rs. 800 Crore. Since it is a fundamental issue, prior approval of
all the shareholders was requested. The Consent of NICDIT has been
received and those from other two shareholders are awaited.

The Board of Directors in their 47" Board Meeting dated 02/05/2023
approved the proposal for hiring a financial advisor cum debt syndicator
through open tendering process on GeM portal for raising a project loan of
INR 783 Crore in line with the CCEA approval. A Request For Proposal
(RFP) was floated in the month of May 2023 which could not fetch requisite
bids. Hence, a revised Request For Proposal has been floated in the month
of October 2023 which is under process.

The Board of Directors in the 47" Board Meeting dated 02/05/2023 also
approved a brief policy for investment of surplus funds and permitted for
parking of surplus capital or other available funds with commercial banks as
per guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy
Industries & Public Enterprises, Government of India through an internal
Investment Committee headed by the Managing Director. The development
of internal monitoring and decision system and assessment of volume and
timeline of surplus funds is in progress.

GoG has approved grant in lieu of royalty exemption and made provision of
INR 5 Crore in the budget for FY 2022-23 and INR 25 Crore in the budget for
FY 2023-24 under a scheme for Assistance to the Dholera Greenfield Airport
Project. Accordingly, INR 11.25 Crore has been released by the GOG till
date.

The Collector Ahmedabad has revised the earlier Draft Rehabilitation and
Resettlement Award amount from INR 55,83,51,572/- to INR 6,55,04,068/-
for private land acquisition of 17.2675 Ha. DIACL has transferred the
requisite amount of INR 6,55,04,068/- to Collector Ahmedabad on 19-08-
2023. Collector Ahmedabad has issued Notice-1, Notice-2 and Notice-3 to
land owners for receiving their compensation and handing over the land to
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DIACL. Landowners of two out of ten survey numbers have received their
compensation amount and other landowners have not come forward to the
office of Collector Ahmedabad for taking the reimbursement of land
compensation. The last date of claim was 26-10-2023. Final process of
handing over of additional private land is in progress.

In the process of city-side development planning, DIACL will require
additional land and in accordance with the Managing Director's instructions,
DIACL will not be seeking additional land from the Government of Gujarat for
commercial development. MD, DIACL suggested that the commercial
development of the already allotted 75 Ha of land (already given to DIACL by
GOG) will be planned by calling a separate tender as and when the
requirement arises. Accordingly tender for master planning consultant was
cancelled.

DIACL has published the tender for the work “Development of New
Greenfield Airport at Dholera, Ahmedabad (Gujarat). Phase -1. SH: Detailed
Designing, Engineering, Procurement and Construction of New Integrated
Passenger Terminal Building, ATC Tower Cum Technical Block, Cargo
Complex, ESS Building, Car Parking, Approach Roads, Ancillary Structures,
Allied Works and Associated Electrical Works including Maintenance,
Operation & AICMC” on 06-09-2023. Technical bids were opened on 07-11-
2023 and same are under scrutiny.

FUTURE COURSE OF ACTION & WAY FORWARD :
1. Execution of Runway and Terminal Building works.

2. Handing over of the additional 117.06 Ha Land (101 Ha Government Land
and 17.06 Ha Private Land) by Government of Gujarat for completion of
Phase | works and Flood mitigation works.

Financial Closure of the Project.

Proposal for installation of Ground Mounted Solar Plant.

Construction of ASSR/MSSR Building at Dholera Airport.
DIVIDEND :

No dividend has been recommended during the financial year as the airport is
under construction and no commercial operation has commenced.

RESERVES :

During the financial year, your company earned a net profit after tax fo INR 5.60
Crore. The entire amount of profit is shown as surplus under the head Reserve
and Surplus Account.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

The authorized share capital of the Company as at 31% March 2023 is INR
200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crores Only) divided into 20,00,00,000
equity shares of INR 10/- each and, the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company is INR 151,51,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty-One Crore Fifty-
One Lakh only) divided into 15,15,10,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY :

There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the
financial year that ended on 31% March 2023.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

M/s. Nitin P. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants ware appointed as Internal
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 under Section 138(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 in The Board Meeting of the Company held on 27"
December, 2022. The Board feels that the scope of Internal Audit and internal
financial control having regard to the size of the Company are adequate as of now
and the necessary actions for improvements as and when required would be
taken by the Company in coming years.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN THE FUTURE :

No such material order (s) has been passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in the
future during the period under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR DATED 31°" MARCH 2023 AND THE DATE OF
THE REPORT:

There are no material changes that occurred between the financial year ended on
31% March 2022 and the date of the report of the Company which affect the
financial position of the Company.

NAME OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS
SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE
YEAR:

No company has become or ceased to be a subsidiary/joint venture/associate
company during the year ended on 31% March 2023.
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DEPOSITS:

During the financial year ended on 31 March 2023, the Company has not
accepted any deposits nor have any deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN UNDER SECTION 92(3):

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the extract of
the Annual Return as provided under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
in Form No. MGT-9 is attached at Annexure-A.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS :

M/s Samdani Shah & Kabra, Company Secretaries were reappointed as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 by the Board in
its meeting held on 27th December 2022 as per Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report does not
contain any qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks. The Secretarial Audit
Report in form MR-3 for the financial year ended on 31%' March 2023 is
attached at Annexure-B.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

During the year under review, the Company is required to comply with the
provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility in pursuance of the

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of CSR
activities are mentioned in the Annual Report on CSR activities enclosed at
Annexure-C.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding the conservation of energy, and
technology absorption is not applicable to the Company since it has not
commenced its business activities.

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo are as follows :

Conservation of Energy*: -
(1) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Not Applicable

(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate source of energy:
Not Applicable

(i)  The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: Not Applicable
Technology absorption*: -

(i) The efforts made towards technology Absorption: Not Applicable
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The benefits derived like product Improvement, cost reduction, Product
development or import substitution: Not Applicable.

In case of imported technology

(Imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year): Not Applicable

(a)

(b)  The year of import;
)
)

The details of technology imported;

(c Whether the technology been fully absorbed;

(d If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and

the reasons thereof;
(iv)  The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not Applicable
Foreign exchange earnings and outgo*:

(@) The foreign exchange earned in terms of actual Inflows during the year:
Not Applicable

(b) The foreign exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows:
Not Applicable

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

The constitution of the Board is prescribed in Article 76 of AOA and Clause
7.2 of the Share Subscription-cum-Shareholders Agreement (SSSHA). Further, no
remuneration is paid by the Company to any directors including Managing
Director as all directors are government officials.

From the 01 April 2022 to till date of the report, the changes that have
occurred in the Board of Directors as per orders/nomination received from
Shareholders,as per the signed Shareholders agreement, from time to time, along
with the details of KMP is attached at Annexure-D.

Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors :

Four (04) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held in the
financial year 2022-23. The details of the Board Meeting are as under:-

Sr. No. No. of Meeting Date of Meeting
42" Board Meeting 09/06/2022
43" Board Meeting 13/07/2022
44" Board Meeting 20/10/2022
45" Board Meeting 27/12/2022
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OTHER MEETINGS :
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

The 9™ Adjourned Annual General Meeting was called and convenedon 9™
June 2022 after receiving the C&AG audit certificate.

The 10™ Annual General Meeting of the Company was called and convened on
27" December 2022 and was adjourned sine-die for want of the C&AG audit
certificate.

The 10" Adjourned Annual General Meeting was called and convened on 25™
May 2023 after receiving the C&AG audit certificate.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The board of Directors has constituted the follwoing Committess :-
Audit Committee

As per Section 177 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors of the Company has formed the Audit Committee. As of
March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee comprises of the following Directors :

Name of Directors Designation in Representative/
Committee Nominee of

Smt. Sumita Dawra, IAS* Chairperson NICDIT
Shri Anil Kumar Pathak** Member AAl
Smt. V. Vidya Member AAl

GOG Nominee*** Member Nomination awaited

During the year, 2022-23. two (2) meetings of the Audit committee were held on 9" June
2022 and 27" December 2022 and all the recommendations made by the Audit
Committee were recommended and accepted by the Board.

*Shri Rajat Kumar Saini has been appointed as Nominee Director on Board of DIACL
and Chairperson of the Audit Committee with effect from date of passing of Circular
Resolution No. 02 dated 07/08/2023.

**Shri Dilip M. Sajnani has been appointed as Nominee Director on Board of DIACL and
Member of the Audit Committee with effect from date of passing of Circular Resolution
No. 04 dated 02/11/2023.

***Shri Komal Bhatt, Financial Advisor (Health) and representative of Government of
Gujarat has been appointed as Nominee Director on Board of DIACL and Member of
Audit Committee with effect from 05/04/2023.
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ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

As per Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors of the Company has formed the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC). As of March 31, 2023, NRC comprises of the following Directors :

Sr. No. Name of Directors Designation in Representative/
Committee Nominee of

Smt. Sumita Dawra, |IAS* Chairperson NICDIT
Shri Hareet Shukla, IAS*** Member GoG

) Shri J.T. Radha Krishna Member AAI
4, Smt. V. Vidya Member AAl

During the year 2022-23, one (1) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was held on 27" December 2022.

*Shri Rajat Kumar Saini has been appointed as Nominee Director on Board of DIACL
and Chairperson of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee with effect from date of
passing of Circular Resolution No. 02 dated 07/08/2023.

**Shri Hareet Shukla, IAS, Managing Director, DIACL and Member of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has resigned from the post of Director and Managing Director
of the Company with effect from 14/06/2023 and Shri Vijay Nehra, IAS has been inducted
as a Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 21/07/2023.
Shri Vijay Nehra, IAS has been resigned as Director and Managing Director with effect
from 30/10/2023.

iii. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As per the Section 135 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board of Directors of the Company has formed Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee. As of March 31, 2023, CSR Committee comprises of the following
Directors:

Sr. No. Name of Directors Designation in Representative
Committee Nominee of

Smt. Sumita Dawra, |IAS* Chairperson NICDIT
Shri Anil Kumar Pathak™** Member AAl

GOG Nominee*** Member Nomination
Awaited

During the year 2022-23, 02 (Two) meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee were held on 9" June 2022 and 27" December 2022.
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*Shri Rajat Kumar Saini has been appointed as Nominee Director on Board of DIACL and
Chairperson of the CSR Committee with effect from date of passing of Circular Resolution
No. 02 dated 07/08/2023.

**Shri Dilip M. Sajnani has been appointed as Nominee Director on Board of DIACL and
Member of the CSR Committee with effect from date of passing of Circular Resolution No.
04 dated 02/11/2023.

***Shri Komal Bhatt, Financial Advisor (Health) and representative of Government of
Gujarat has been appointed as Nominee Director on Board of DIACL and Member of Audit
Committee with effect from 05" April 2023.

iv. Share Allotment Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed the Share Allotment
Committee As of March 31, 2023 the Committee comprises the following
Directors;

Sr. Ni.

Name of Directors

Designation in
Committee

Representative
Nominee of

Smt. Sumita Dawra, IAS*

Chairperson

NICDIT

Shri Hareet Shukla, IAS**

Member

GoG

Dr. Rahul B. Gupta, IAS***

Member

GoG

Smt. V. Vidya

Member

AAI

*Shri Rajat Kumar Saini has been appointed as Nominee Director on Board of DIACL and
Chairperson of the Share Allotment Committee with effect from date of passing of Circular
Resolution No. 02 dated 07/08/2023.

**Shri Hareet Shukla, IAS, Managing Director, DIACL and Member of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has resigned from the post of Director and Managing Director of
the Company with effect from 14/06/2023 and Shri Vijay Nehra, IAS has been inducted as
a Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 21/07/2023.

Shri Vijay Nehra, IAS has been resigned as Director and Managing Director with effect
from 30/10/2023.

** Dr. Rahul B. Gupta, IAS, Nominee Director and Member of Share Allotment Committee
has resigned from the board of Company with effect from 17™ April 2023 and Shri Sandip
Sagale has been inducted as a Member of Share Allotment Committee with effect from
21/07/2023.

No Meeting of Share Allotment Committee was held during the Year 2022-23.
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REMUNERATION PAID TO KEY MANGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) :

As the Company is a Government Company, the director who has been
appointed by the Board as Managing Director is the officer nominated by the
Government of Gujarat. Hence no remuneration has been paid to Shri Hareet
Shukla, IAS (DIN: 02858978), during the financial year 2022-23. The details of
remuneration paid to other Key Managerial Personnel i.e. Chief Operationg
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretaries during the FY are
mentioned in VI (A) and Clause VI (C) respectively of Form No. MGT - 9.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES :

As the company is unlisted Public Company, the provisions of section 197 (12)
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, statement of particulars of employees is not applicable to the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, OR INVESTIMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186:

Details of Loans : NIL
Details of Investments : NIL

Details of Guarantee/ Security Provided : NIL

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES :

The particulars of every contract or arrangement entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in Sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the F.Y. 2022-23 with the relevant details have been filled in
AOC-2 which is enclosed as Annexure -E forming part of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY :

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed
to managing the risk in a proactive and efficient manner.

BOARD EVALUATION :

The appointments of the Board of Directors are made as per the nomination
received form the AAI, GoG and NICDIT (“Shareholders of the Company”).with
respect to the executed Share Subscription-cum-Shareholders Agreement
(SSSHA) and provisions of Articles of Association ( AoA).As per the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India notification dated 05/06/2015, Government
Companies are exempted from the provision of sub- section 3 clauses (p) of
section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, being a Government Company,
the provision of Board Evaluation is not applicable.
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INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROLS :

M/s. Nitin P. Mehta & Company, Chartered Accountants were appointed as
Internal Auditors of the Company. The reports and findings of the same were
discussed with the management and suitable corrective actions were taken as
per the directions on, an ongoing basis, to improve efficiency in the activities of
the company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS :

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) vide their letter
No./CA.V/ICOY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, DIACL(0)/428 dated 29" August 2022
has appointed M/s Joy Baxi & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 as per the provisions of
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (read with other applicable provision).

AUDITORS' AND C&AG REPORT :

(a) Statutory Auditors’ Report for the F.Y. 2022-23:
The Statutory Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualifications.
The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditor’'s Report are self-
explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments of
Directors.
C&AG Report for the F.Y. 2022-23:

The Company has received a “Non-Review Certificate” vide their letter no
GAP/AAI/A/ICS AUDIT/DIACL/6-150/2023-24/348 dated 13/10/2023 which
was received through their e-mail dated 13/10/2023.

FRAUD REPORTING B THE AUDITORS :

During the FY 2022-23, no instance of fraud has been reported by the Statutory
Auditors of the Company to the Audit Committee under Section 143 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

VIGILANCE :

The applicability of the vigil mechanism with reference to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 is, as of now, not applicable to the company. However, your
Company is ensuring to follow the possible methods for maintaining
transparency.

COST AUDITORS :

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is neither
required to appoint the Cost Auditors nor required to maintain cost records.
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DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 :

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in line with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressed) Act, 2013.

There were no cases filed during the financial year that ended on 31%' March
2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Companies Secretaries of India from time to time.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND :

The Company is not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES :
The Company is not required to get the credit rating of the securities.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company is the Subsidiary of the Airports Authority of India and does not
have any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies of its own as per
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT :

In pursuance to the provisions of the Clause (c) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors’ Responsibility Statement is hereby
stated as follows.

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for the period;

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
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(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis; and

(e) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board of Directors of the Company wishes to place on record, their
thanks and appreciation to all emploees, staff members, and executives for their
contribution to the operations of the Company. The Directors are thankful to
Airports Authority of India (AAl), the Governemnt of Gujarat (GoG), the National
Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) as well as
the Central and State Government departments/agencies, and Bankers of the
Company.

The Directors also place on record their sincere thanks to the other Stakeholders
for their continued support, cooperation, and confidence in the Management of
the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors of
Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL)

Date: - 06/12/2023
Place: - Gandhinagar
Sd/-
Sanjeev Kumar
Chairman

Registered Office:

Block No.1, A-2 Wing,

3" Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan,
Gandhinagar — 382010.
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmyogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

ANNEXURE INDEX

Annexure Content

A Extract of Annual Return in MGT-9

Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3

Details of changes in Key Managerial Personnel & Board of

B

C Report on CSR activities of the Company

D , .

Directors from 01/04/2022 to till the date of the report

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements
entered into by the company with related parties in
prescribed form AOC-2.

C&AG report for FY 2022-23
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Annexure — A

FORM NO. MGT -9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on March 31, 2023

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN U62100GJ2012SGC068709
Registration Date 20" January 2012

Name of the Company Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL)

Category/Sub-category of the | Company Limited by Share/Governemnt Company
Company

Address of the Registered Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3" Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan,
office & contact details Sector-10/A, Gandhinagar-382010, Gujarat.
Ph: 079-23-58528

Whether listed company Yes/ | No
No.

Name, Address of Registrar & | NA
Transfer Agent (RTA), if any.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: -

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated)

Sr. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the company
No. products / services Produect/service

1 Development of Greenfield 43 The Company is yet to commence its
International Airport Project business activities.

M. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
[No. of Companies for which information is being filled]

HOLDING/ %of | APPLICABLE

CIN/GLN | SUBSIDIARY/ | Shares SECTION
ASSOCIATE Held

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE
COMPANY

Airports Authority of India* NA Holding 51% 2(46)

Add : Rajiv Gandhi Bhavan, Authority
Safdarjung Airport, New Delhi-
110003

* Airports Authority of India (AAl) came into existence on 1% April 1995. AAI has been consituted as a
statutory authority under the Airports Authority of India Act, 1994.
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V.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity Share Capital Breakup as a percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Annual Report 2022-23

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning

of the year [As on 1 April 2022]

No. of Shares held at the end of
the year [As on 31-March-2023]

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total % of
Total

Shares

A. Prom

oters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

b) Central Govt (s)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

c) State Govt

50000000

50000000

33

50000000

50000000

77270000

77270000

51

77270000

77270000

)
)
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks / FI

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

f) Any other

Shri Amrit Lal Meena
IAS, CEO National
Industrial Corridor
Development &
Implementation Trust)
(change in Nominee)

24240000

24240000

16

NIL

NIL

Smt. Sumita Dawra,
IAS, CEO National
Industrial Corridor
Development &
Implementation Trust)
(change in Nominee)

24240000

24240000

Sub-Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) (1)

151510000

151510000

100

151510000

151510000

(2) Foreign

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Sub-total shareholding of
of Promoter A(2)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total Shareholding of
Promoter A(1) + A(2)

151510000

151510000

100

151510000

151510000

B.

Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

NIL

NIL

b) Banks / Fl

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

d) State Govt(s)

NIL

NIL

)
)
c) Central Govt
)
)

e) Venture Capital Funds

NIL

NIL

f) Insurance Companies

NIL

NIL

g) Flls

NIL

NIL
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h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1): -

2. NON-INSTITUTIONS
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital up to Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others (specify)

Non-Resident Indians

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - D R

Sub-total (B)(2): -

Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1) + (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) NIL [151510000|151510000 151510000 | 151510000

ii) Shareholding of Promoter:

Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of
of the year (As on 01.04.2022) | the year (As on 31.03.2023)
%of Shares
Pledged /
encumbere
d to total
shares

Airports Authority of India 77270000 51 NIL 77270000 51 NIL NIL

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat {49999900 33 NIL 49999900 33 NIL NIL

Shri K. Amrit Lal Meena,
CEO,

National Industrial Corridor  |24240000 (16)

Development &
Implementation Trust

%
change
in share
holding
during
the year

Sr )
No Shareholder’s Name % of total| %of Shares % of total

No. of (Shares of| Pledged/ No. of | Shares of
Shares the encumbered | Shares the
company | to total share company

(25)



DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022-23

Smt. Sumita Dawra, CEO,
National Industrial Corridor

Development &
Implementation Trust

24240000

Hon'bele Governor of
Gujarat Jointly with Dr. Rajiv
Kumar Gupta, IAS

Hon'bel Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Raj Kumar
Gupta, IAS

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Shri Rajesh K.
Joshi

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Shri B.S. Mehta,
Deputy Secretary

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Shri J.B. Patel

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Ms. K.H. Pathak

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Smt. Palak
Madia

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Shri Kishan
Sindhav

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Shri Ratnesh
Shah

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Ms. Kinal
Kharadi

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
Jointly with Shri 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
Harichandrasingh Rathod

TOTAL 151510000 100 NIL 151510000 100 NIL NIL

Note : All the individuals are Government officials and holding shares as nominees of the

Government of Gujarat/NICDIT (Government of India owned trust)
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i) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr Shareholding at the
No. Particulars beginning of
the year

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year

Increase No. of % of total
0,
% of total /Decreas shares shares of
No. of shares of A Reason the
shares the share company
Holding

Airports Authority of India (AAI) 77270000 51 -

Transaction
During the year

company

Hon'ble Goveror of Gujarat
(other 10 nominees of GoG)

NICDIT through its nominee 2,42,40,000

50000000 33

Change inthe nominee/ Transfer of Shares

Dr. Rajiv Kumar Gupta, IAS -

Shri Raj Kumar, IAS -

Shri Amrit lal Meena, IAS -

Shri Rajeev Singh Thakur

Shri Sumita Dawra, IAS

At the End of the year

Airports Authrorit of India (AAI) 77270000

Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat
(Other 10 Nominees of (GoG)

NICDIT Through its nominee 24240000

50000000

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

ﬁ:) Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding

For Each of the Top 10 of the year 01.04.2022 during the Year -31.3.2023

Shareholders % of total No. of % of total
No. of shares shares of the ’ shares of the
shares
company company

Nil Nil Nil Nil

At the beginning of the year

Change during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
At the end of the year

Nil Nil Nil Nil

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and
each Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding/ at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the Year

No. of % of total No. of % of total
’ shares of the ’ shares of the
shares shares
company company

Shri Sanjeev Kumar, IAS
Chairman and Nominee Director

At the beginning of the year

27)



DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022-23

Shareholding of each Directors and Shareholding/ at the

Cc lative Shareholdi
each Key Managerial Personnel tmitative S 1arso'ding

beginning of the year during the Year

No. of % of total No. of % of total

’ shares of the ’ shares of the

shares shares
company company

Date wise Increase/Decreases in - - NIL NIL

Promoters Shareholding during the year

At the end of the year NIL NIL

Shri Hareet Shukla, IAS Managing
Director

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

Shri Amrit Lal Meena, IAS

Nominee Director, DIACL (Nominee of
NICDIT)

At the beginning of the year 24240000 -

Date wise Increase/Decreases in (24240000)
Promoters Shareholding during the year
(Transfer)

At the end of the year NIL

Smt. Sumita Dawra, IAS

Nominee Director, DIACL (Nominee of
NICDIT)

At the beginning of the year -

Date wise Increase/Decreases in 24240000
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year 24240000

Shri Rajiv Kumar Gupta, IAS**,
Nominee Director, DIACL*
At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

Dr. Rahul B. Gupta, IAS

Nominee Director , IAS

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

Shri Anil Kumar Pathak
Director, DIACL
At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year
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Shareholding of each Directors and Shareholding/ at the

Cc lative Shareholdi
each Key Managerial Personnel tmitative S 1arso'ding

beginning of the year during the Year

No. of % of total No. of % of total
’ shares of the ’ shares of the
shares shares

company company

Shri J.T. Radha Krishna
Nominee Director , DIACL
At the beginning of the year NIL

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

Smt. V. Vidya
Woman Director , DIACL
At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

Shri Rajesh K. Joshi*
Nominee Director , DIACL
At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

Shri Manoj Kumar
Chief Financial Officer, DIACL
At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

Ms. Ekta P. Shukla,
Company Secretary Officer, DIACL
At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

Ms. Priya Makhija
Company Secretary, DIACL
At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decreases in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
At the end of the year

All Held by Government nominees, hence held jointly with Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat.

* Shri R. K Joshi has resigned as Director from the DIACL Board with effect from 09/09/2022
but continue to remain as shareholder till order received from I&M Dept. dated 01/07/2023 for
transfer of shares from Shri R. K Joshi to Shri Komal Bhatt, FA (Health).
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** Dr. Rajivkumar Gupta has resigned as Director from the DIACL Board with effect from
25/10/2021 but continue to remain as shareholder till order received from I&M Dept. dated
17/06/2022 for transfer of shares from Dr. Rajivkumar Gupta, IAS to Shri Raj Kumar, IAS.

F) INDEBTEDNESS -

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.
Secured Loans Unsecured
Particulars excluding Loans (Rs. | Deposits
deposits In crores)

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year

* Addition

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount NIL NIL
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but due NIL NIL
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL
XI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

Total Amount

Gross salary NIL NIL

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in NIL NIL
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income- NIL NIL
tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section NIL NIL
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option NIL NIL
Sweat Equity NIL NIL

Commission
- as % of profit, - others, specify

NIL NIL

Others, please specify NIL NIL
Total (A) NIL NIL
Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL
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B. Remuneration to other directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Total Amount
Directors

Independent Directors NIL
Fee for attending board committee meetings NIL

Commission NIL
Others, please specify NIL
Total (1) NIL
Other Non-Executive Directors/Chairman and Vice NIL
Chairman
Fee for attending board committee meetings NIL

Commission NIL
Others, please specify NIL
Total (2) NIL
Total (B)= (1+2) NIL
Total Managerial NIL
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act NIL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD
SN Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration coo CFO CS CS

Kirit Kumar | Dr. Manoj Ekata P. Priya
Jain Kumar Shukla Makhija

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 2,15,425 15,38,559 3,50,064 40,000 21,44,048
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 9,20,665 9,29,136
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary NIL NIL
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

Stock Option NIL NIL
Sweat Equity NIL NIL
Commission NIL NIL

- as % of profit NIL NIL
others, specify... NIL NIL
Others, please specify 4,30,836 4.47,771
Er cont. to Pf, Ben Fund and
Retirement benefit

Total 2,15,425 28,90,060 3,73,535 35,20,895
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Xil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Annual Report 2022-23

Type

Section of the
Companies
Act

Brief

Description

Details of
Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding

fees imposed

Authority
[RD/ NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give
Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Punishment

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Compounding

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Punishment

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Compounding

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Punishment

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Compounding

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Date: - 06/12/2023
Place: - Gandhinagar

Registered Office:

Block No.1, A-2 Wing,
3" Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan,
Gandhinagar — 382010

By order of the Board of Directors of
Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL)

(32)

Sd/-

(Sanjeev Kumar)

Chairman
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Samdani Shah & Kabra

Company Secretaries

1213, Ganesh Glory, Nr. Jagatpur Crossing, Besides Ganesh Genesisi, Off. S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad-382481

ANNEXURE - B

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31/03/2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Dholera International Airport Company Limited
Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor,

Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector-10/A
Gandhinagar-382010

Gandhinagar, India.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Dholera International
Airport Company Limited ((Company’). Secretarial Audit was concluded in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representative during the

conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31%' March, 2023 (review

Period) complied with the statutory provision listed hereunder and also the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Return Filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the review period, according to the

provisions of :

HO : 702, Ocean, Sarabhai Complound, Near Centre Square Mall, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Road, Vadodara-390 023
Phone : +91 265 2988933, +91 9723462962, +91 9904488112. EMAIL : cssamdani@gmail.com
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The Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there under to
the extent applicable :

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations, and Bye-laws framed there under
to the extent applicable :

The Depositories Act, 1996, and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder,
to the extent applicable:

The Reglations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and exchange
Board of India Act, 1992, are not applicable to the company being Unlisted Public
Company.

Other sector specific laws as follows :
(@) The Aircraft act, 1934 and the Rules made thereunder;
(b) Airports authority of India Act, 1994 and the Rules made thereunder.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standards ("Standards")as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India. Being Unlisted Public Company, Clauses / Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not applicable to the Company.

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings are not applicable to the Comapn.

During the review period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
applicable Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that :

A. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consitituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition
ofthe Board of Directors that took place during the review period were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act;

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
Agenda and detailed notes on Agenda were sent timely and well in advance or at
shorter notice with the consent of majority of Directors and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the Agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting;

€2
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As per the minutes of the meetings duly recoreded and signed by the Chairman, the
decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been
recorded,;

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all
the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

During the review period, there were no specific instances/actions in the Company
in pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines etc.,
having major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

SD/-
Megha Dave
Partner

Samdani Shah & Kabra
Company Secretaries
ASC No. 61089; CP No. 23292

ICSI| Peer Review # 1079/2021
ICSI UDIN : AO61098E000773304

Place : Vadodara
Date : August 09, 2023

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Appendix A and forms an integral part of this report.
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Samdani Shah & Kabra

Company Secretaries

1213, Ganesh Glory, Nr. Jagatpur Crossing, Besides Ganesh Genesisi, Off. S.G. Highway, Ahmedabad-382481

Appendix — A

To,

The Members,

Dholera International Airport company Limited,

Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector-10/A
Gandhinagar-382010, Gandhinagar, India.

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter, that :

Maintenance of Secretarial records and compliance of the provisions of Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our examination was limited to the verification
and auditof procedures and records on test basis. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records and compliances based on such
verification and audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records and we believe that the processes and practices
we followed providea reasonable basis for our opinion.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

SD/-
Megha Dave
Partner

Samdani Shah & Kabra
Company Secretaries
ASC No. 61089; CP No. 23292

ICSI Peer Review # 1079/2021
ICSI UDIN : A061098E000773304

Place : Vadodara
Date : August 09, 2023

HO : 702, Ocean, Sarabhai Complound, Near Centre Square Mall, Dr. Vikram Sarabhai Road, Vadodara-390 023
Phone : +91 265 2988933, +91 9723462962, +91 9904488112. EMAIL : cssamdani@gmail.com
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Annexure-C

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
(For Financial Year star from 01st April 2022 to 31st March 2023

Brief outline of CSR Policy of the Company

The Company’s CSR policy is focusing on utilizing the available resources to
achieve its goal of maximization of wealth and reciprocating toward society by
carrying out social, environmental, and economic welfare activities.
Composition of CSR Committee

The present composition of the CSR Committee as of 31.03.2023 is as follows :

Name of Designation in Number of Number of meetings
Director Committee/ meetings of CSR | of CSR Committee
Nature of committee held attended during the
Directorship during the year year (FY 2022-23)
(FY 2022-23)

Shri Amrit Lal Meena, |IAS* Nominee 2
Director

Shri Anil Kumar Pathak Non-Executive
Director

Nominee to be appointed by Nominee
GoG Director

"Shri Rajesh K. Joshi, was a member of the Committee till his resignation i.e. 09.09.2022
and has attended the 5th CSR Committee Meeting dated 09/06/2022 During the 6th CSR
meeting dated 27/12/2022, the post was vacant.

*Shri Komal Bhatt, Financial Advisor (Health) and representative of Government
of Gujarat has been inducted as Member of CSR Committee of DIACL with effect
from 5th April 2023.

3. Provide the web link where the Composition of the CSR Committee, CSR
Policy, and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website
of the company.

Not Applicable.

Provide the details of the Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

Not Applicable.
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Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
and the amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set off
from preceding financial for the financial year, if any
years (in Rs) (in Rs)

NIL

Average net profit of the company for the FY 2022-23 as per section 135(5):
INR 9,03,22,547/-

(@)  Two percent of the average net profit of the company for the Fy 2022-23 as
per section 135(5): INR 18,06,451/-

(b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the
previous financial years. - NIL

(c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - NIL

(d)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year 2022-23 (7a+7b-7c). — INR
18,06,451/-

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the

Financial Year.
(In Rs.)

Total Amount Transferred to | Amount Transferred to any fund specifle
Unspent CSR Account under Sechedule VIl as per second

As Per Section 135 (6) Proviso to section 135 (5)

Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
Transfer The Found Transfer

Rs.18,06,451/-* 0 Not Applicable
for Fy 2022-23

Rs.15,03,874/-* Not Applicable
for Fy 2021-22

*The CSR obligation of INR 14,68,081/- remained unspent till 31.03.2022 and
transferred to unspent CSR account on 30/04/2022. The Company has transferred
total amount 33,10,376/- to DDO on 31/03/2023 towards CSR obligation for both FY
2021-22 and FY 2022-23 i.e INR 15,03,874 (against above budgeted CSR obligation
as revised) towards CSR obligation for the FY 2021-22 and INR 18,06,451/- towards
CSR obligation for the FY 2022-23 for ongoing CSR projects.

(b)  Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year :

(3%)
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() () () (6) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Name lem Location of Project Amount Amount | Mode of Mode of
of the form the project duration. spent in transf imple imple
project | thelist the erred to entatio mentation
of . current unspent | n Direct Through
activite financial CSR (Yes/ implem
sin projec year (in Account No). enting
schedul t(in Rs.) for the Agency
e vill to Rs.) projects Na | CSR
the act. as per
section
13 (6) (in
Rs.)

m Regi
e strat
ionu
mber

Rural (x) ' On 18,06,45 NIL Na
develo of going 1/-
pment | ihe No du

Project Schedu ration

at :
fixed
village le xe
VI

Nava
gam
Rural (x)
develo of
pment the

Project Schedu
at le

village
Nava vil
gam

*Note: The DDO, Ahmedabad and their subordinate office(s) will act as supporting
agencies for the execution of the work at the site. Hence, the DDO or their subordinate

office will implement and monitor the CSR work at the village and provide the

necessary report to the Company. Therefore, mode of implementation of CSR is
“Direct”..

(C) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the
financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sr.| Name of the Item form |Local area Location Amount Spent Mode of Mode of Imple mentation
No. Project the listof | (Yes/ No) of the Project for the project |implementatio| Through imple mentatiing
activities in (inRs.) n Direct agency.
schedule State District (ves/No.) Name CSR
VIl to the Regis

Act Tration
number

Not Applicable

(d) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: NIL
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
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(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 18,06,451/- for
FY 2022-23 and Rs. 15,03,874/- for the FY 2021-22.
(g) Excess amount for set-off, if any

Amount
(In Rs.)

18,06,451

Sr. Particular
No.

(1) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135

()

18,06,451

(2) Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(3) Excess amount spent for the financial year (ii)-(i) 0
NIL

(4) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or Programmes or activities
of the the previous financial Years, if any

5) Amount available fo set of in succeeding financial years (iii)-(iv) NIL

9.(a) Details of Unspent CSR Amout of the preceding three financial years :

Sr. | Preceding Amount Amount Amount

No. | Financial

Amount transferred to any

Year

transferred to

Unspent CSR
Account under
section 135 (6)

(inRs.)

Spent in the
reporting
Financial

year (in Rs.)

fund specified under
swchedule VILL per section

135(6), if any.

remaining
to be spent
in

Name of
the Fund

Amount
(in Rs)

Date of
Transfer

succeeding
financial
years.

(inRs.)

2021-22

14,68,081

15,03,874

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

(d)

Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the

preceding financial year (s)
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() (4) (6) (7) (8) 9

Name of the Finanncial Total Amount Cumulative Status of
Project Year in amount Spent on amount the Project
which the allocated | the project spent at Completed/
project was for the in the the end of On going
commenced project reporting reporting
(inRs.) Financial Financial
ear ear

(InRs.) (InRs.)

Rural 2022-23 33,10,325 | 33,10,325* | 33,10,325* | Ongoing
Development
Project etc at
village Nava

gam

*DIACL has paid the amount towards CSR liability to DDO, Ahmedabad on their
demand. The amount for the current year (FY 2022-23) INR 18,06,451/- and
amount towards previous year CSR liability i.e. 15,03,874/- (originally budgeted
amount 14,68,081/-) has been paid by DIACL to DDO, Ahmedabad. However,
DDO has submit completion certificate of spending of CSR liability of Rs
15,03,874/-

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details
relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the

financial year (asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NIL
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of the capital asset. NIL

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name
suchcapital asset is registered, their address, etc. NIL

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including
complete address and location of the capital asset). NIL

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the
average net profit as per section 135(5).

Not Applicable as the Company has transferred INR required CSR amount for FY
2022-23 to DDO, Ahmedabad.

Sd/- Sd/-
(Chif Excutive Officer or (Chairman CSR Committee)
Managing Director or Director)
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Annexure-D

Annual Report 2022-23

Details of Changes in Key Managerial Personnel & Board of Directors from
01/04/2022 to till date of report :

Name & Din of Director

Designation

Date of

Appointment

Date of
Ceasation

Shri Sanjeev Kumar, IAS
DIN : 01866640

Nominee Director
& Chairman

05/05/2021

Continue

Dr. Rahul Gupta, IAS
Din : 08572955

Nominee Director

31/12/2021

17/04/2023

Shri Sandip Sagale, IAS
DIN : 09002794

Nominee Director

21/07/2023

Continue

Shri Amrit Lal Meena, I1AS
Din : 06626193

Nominee Director

02/12/2021

27/10/2022

Shri Rajeev Singh Thakur
DIN : 02631653

Nominee Director

06/12/2022

15/12/2022

Smt. Sumita Dawra, IAS
DIN : 01005516

Nominee Director

23/12/2022

03/08/2023

Shri Rajat Kumar Saini, IAS
DIN : 10264275

Nominee Director

07/08/2023

Continue

Shri Hareet Shukla, IAS
DIN : 02858978

Managing Director

17/09/2019

14/06/2023

Shri Vijay Nehra, IAS
DIN : 05118716

Nominee Director

21/07/2023

30/10/2023

Shri Supreet Sing Gulati, IAS
DIN : 07591862

Additional Director

30/11/2023

06/12/2023

Shri Supreet Sing Gulati, IAS
DIN : 07591862

Managing Director

06/12/2023

Continue

Shri Dilip M. Sajnani
DIN : 10366167

Nominee Director

02/11/2023

Continue

Shri Anil Kumar Pathak
DIN : 08213061

Director

25/06/2019

16/10/2023

Shri J.T. Radha Krishna
DIN : 09210566

Nominee Director

08/06/2021

Continue

Smt. V. Vidya
DIN : 08366688

Woman Director

25/06/2019

Continue

Shri Rajesh K. Joshi
DIN : 08917003

Nominee Director

11/12/2020

09/09/2022

Shri Komal Bhatt
DIN : 09453556

Nominee Director

05/04/2023

Continue

Dr. Manoj Kumar

Chief Financial
Officer

07/09/2019

Continue

Ms. Ekta P. Shukla

Company Secretary

15/02/2020

11/11/2022

Ms. Priya Makhija

Company Secretary

01/03/2023

Continue
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FORM NO. AOC -2

Annual Report 2022-23

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso

thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis :

The company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction

with its related parties which is/are not at arm's length during financial year

2020-21.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm'’s length basis:

Name(s) of the
related party and
nature of the
relationship

Nature of
Contracts/
arrangements/

transactions

Duration of
the contracts/
arrangements/

transactions

Salient terms
of the
contracts or
arrangements
of
transactions
including the
value, if any

Date(s)
of
approval
by the
Board,

if any

Amount
paid as
advan

ces if
any

Mr. Kiritkumar
Jani

Chief Financial
Officer

Payment of
Salary

The duration
of the contract
is 1 (One)
year form the
date of
signing of the
contract,
subject to
renesal upon
mutual
agreement.

payment of
salary and
allowance
Amount

2,15,425

01/11/2022

Ms. Manoj
Kumar

Chif Financial
Officer

Payment of
salary

The duration
of deputation
is 3 (Three)
year form the
date of
Joining.

Payment of
Salary and
Allowance
Amount
28,90,060

06/08/2021

Ms. Ekta P.
Shukla

Company

Payment of
salary

The duration
of the
Contract is 1

Payment of
Salary and
Allowance

15/02/2022
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Secretary (One) year Amount
(Professional form the date | 3 73 535
Service Contract) of signing of
the contract,
subject to
renewal upon
mutual
agreement.

Ms. Priya Payment of The duration | Payment of 01/03/2023
Makhija Salary of the Salary

Company Contract is 1 and
(Professional (One) year Allowance
Service form the date Amount

of signing of
Contract) the contract, 41,875

subject to
renewal upon
mutual
agreement.

Airports Reimbursement Reimbur 05/04/2023
Authority of of Expense on sement of
India (AAl) Preparation of expenses on
JV Agreement the preparati
on of the JV
agreement nt
Amount
8,50,000
Reimbursement Reimbur 09/06/2022
of Terminal Sement of
Benefits of AAI Trminal
Staff Benefits

of AAIl Staff
Amount
24,03,401

By Order of the Board of Directors of
Dholera International Airport Comppany Limited (DIACL)

Date: - 06/12/2023
Place: - Gandhinagar Sd/-
Sanjeev Kumar
Chairman

Registered Office:

Block No.1, A-2 Wing,

3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan,
Gandhinagar - 382010
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Annexure F

9T /No. W/ﬁﬂf/ﬁ/umgl.*/gvpc L/c, —-\a/u 3 )/. 1o
ARG @ iaEr 3R o@r f{Qum,

Fraterd wuH v e (e en), et
INDIAN AUDIT & ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
(INFRASTRUCTURE), DELHI

SUPREME AUDIT INSTITUTION OF INDIA
e i /Dated 13 /6202 2

Dedicated to Truth in Public Interest

dar A,
vay s
B FEAUAT TAAATE Huer RfAeE
Il #fow sare 1 A2 R
FAAEN saw FFET-10
et 9 - 382010
TS

=l

v st 7T 2013 i 4R 143 (6)(b) ¥ ata 31 AT 2023 F FACT
g% & fNT Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL) & @13t
W HRE & das ve #greaadas f Roaforar |
AP,
# 3§ 9T & Y Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL) &
31 mﬁzozsﬁmgwa&%ﬁmaﬁﬁmmzowﬁm
143(6)(b) & it Fofem g1 fFU S H1 FATYT Heldel W T § |

i a9, U@, TRUR W9, $RAR URE, 78 faee—110002
3" Floor, A-Wing, Indraprastha Bhawan, |.P. Estate, New Delhi-110002
QY44 /Tele.: 011-23378473, D& /Fax : 011-23378432
E-mail : pdainfradi@cag.gov.in

(45)



DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022-23

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023.

The preparation of financial statements of DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
COMPANY LIMITED (DIACL) for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated
09 August 2023.

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct
the supplementary audit of the financial statements of DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL
AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED (DIACL) for the year ended 31 March 2023 under section
143(6)(a) of the Act.

For & on Behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India
Place: - New Delhi
Date: - 13 October 2023 Sd/-
(Rajiv Kumar Pandey)
Director General of Audit
(Infrastructure)
New Delhi.
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmyogi Bhavan,

Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR FY 2022-23
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1 : 603-604, "Shallin"
]Oy BaX| & Associates. Plot No. -24 Opp. Petrol Pump, Sector-11, Gandhinagar-382011

Chartered Accountants Gandhinagar-382011.
Ph: +91-79 232 41940

E-mail : info@jbca.in

Website : www.jbca.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The the Members of,
DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED,

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dholera International Airport
Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,

2013, (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with

the Accounting Standards Prescribed under section 133 of the act read with the
companies (Accouting Standards) Rules, 2021 and other accounting principles generally
accepted inIndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
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of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
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related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls, with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
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uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the Key Audit Matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstance, we determine that the matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequence of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the Order) issued
by the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give, in the
“‘Annexure-A” a statement on matter specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
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Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

In pursuance of the Notification No. G.S.R 463(E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to disqualification of directors is not applicable to the Government
Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls on financial reporting
of the company with reference to these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B” to this
report.

We report that the provision of Section 197(16) of the Act regarding remuneration
to directors are not applicable as the company has not paid any remuneration to its
directors within the meaning of Section 197.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge

and belief, other than disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
(“intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other person or entity identified in any manner
whatsoever by or behalf of the company (“ultimate beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
beneficiaries.
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b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any
person or entity including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
person or entity identified in any manner whatsoever by or behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries;
and
Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that representations under sub clause
(a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention to the provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As required under Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
“‘Annexure C”, a statement on the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India after complying with their suggested methodology of audit, the

action taken thereon and its impact on the accounts and financial statements of the
company.

For Joy Baxi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 115785W

CA Joy A. Baxi

Partner

Membership No. 046021

UDIN : 23046021BGQHTL6776

Place: - Gandhinagar
Date: - 09/08/2023
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ANNEXURE -'A'
to Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph -1 under the heading ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date of Dholera International Airport Company
Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023)

In terms of the information and explanation sought by us and given by the company and
the books of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (@) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year. The group of staff members forming a
committee has physically verified all the fixed assets in the month of May
2022. They have reconciled with fixed assets records of the company as of
March 31, 2023. In our opinion the procedure is reasonable having regard to
the size of the company and the nature of assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

The company does not own any immovable property other than leasehold
land allotted by Government of Gujrat at Village Navagam, Taluka Dholera,
District Ahmedabad. In line with standard Practice of Government of Gujarat,
no agreement has been entered for leasehold land with Government of
Gujarat, The company has not made the survey of above stated open land
during the year.

The company has not revalued it property, plant and equipment (including
right of use of assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31,
2023.

There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for
holding any Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
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As explained to us the company does not possess any inventories. Hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limit in excess of
five crores rupees from bank or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets during any point of limit of the year. Hence reporting under
clause 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(@) During the year the company has not made investment (except in
short term inter corporate deposit with GSFS Limited), provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loan secured and
unsecured, to the Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties.

The terms and conditions of inter corporate deposit are not prejudicial to the
company’s interest.

The company has invested in inter corporate deposits with GSFS Limited
where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been regular as stipulated.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to
Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnership or any other parties which are
overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to

Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnership or any other parties which has
fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans
have been granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same
parties.

The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnership or any other
parties. Accordingly the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the order is
not applicable to the company.

The company has not granted any loan or made investment or provided any
guarantees or securities to the parties covered u/sec 185 and 186 of the Act,
accordingly the clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
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amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) if the order is not applicable to
the company.

The maintenance of the cost record has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the business activities
carried out by the company. Hence reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us the company is
generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other
statutory dues applicable to it. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of the

aforesaid dues were outstanding on 31% March, 2023 for a period of more than six

months of becoming payable. (b) According to the information and explanation given
to us, there are no outstanding statutory dues which have not been deposited as on
31% March. 2023 on account of dispute.

(viii) The company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded in the books of accounts, in the tax assessment under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(ix) (@) In our opinion according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not taken loan or borrowings from any lender. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f) of the order are not applicable.

The company is not declared willful defaulter by a banker, financial
institutions or any lender.

According to the information and explanation given to us the company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments during the year and hence reporting under 3(x)(a)
is not applicable.

Aa per the information and explanations given to us the company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or convertible
debentures during the year hence reporting under 3(x)(b) is not applicable.
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No fraud by the company and no material fraud on the company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

No report under Sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management there was no whistleblower
complain received by the company during the year.

(xii)  The company is not a Nidhi company hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) is not
applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion the company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with related parties and
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b)  We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the company during
the year and till date determining the nature, extent and timing of our audit
procedures.

(xv) In our opinion, during the year, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

(xvi) (a) As per information and explanation given to us, the company is not required to be

registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) and (c) of the order is not applicable. (b) As per
information and explanations given to us, the company is not a core investment
company as defined in the regulation made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (d) is not applicable.

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the current as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii)There has been no resignations of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to
the company.
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(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet date. We however state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within the period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.

In our opinion and information and explanation given to us during the course of audit
the company does not have any entity the financial accounts of which are required to
be consolidated. Hence clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable.

For Joy Baxi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 115785W

CA Joy A. Baxi

Partner

Membership No. 046021

UDIN : 23046021BGQHTL6776

Date: - 09/08/2023
Place: - Gandhinagar
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ANNEXURE - B

To Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” section of our report of even date to the Members of Lodestone
Software Services Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DHOLERA
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2023
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
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established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of

the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023, based on the internal control

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Joy Baxi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 115785W

CA Joy A. Baxi

Partner

Membership No. 046021

UDIN : 23046021BGQHTL6776

Date: - 09/08/2023
Place: - Gandhinagar
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ANNEXURE - C

(Referred to in paragraph — 3 under the heading

Annual Report 2022-23

‘Report on other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)
DHOLERA INTERNATIONLA AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
As per Directions u/s 143(5) Companies Act, 2013

Questionnaire

Responses/Remedial Measures

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? |If yes, the implications of
processing of accounting transactions outside
IT system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any,
may be stated.

Yes, the company has system in
place to process all the
accounting transactions through
IT system.

The company has not processed
any accounting transaction
outside IT system, hence, there is
no financial implication of the
same.

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of
debts /loans/interest etc. made by a lender to
the company due to the company’s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a
government company, then this direction is
also applicable for statutory auditor of lender
company.)

According to the information and
explanations given by the
management, the company has
not taken any loans. Hence this
para is not applicable.

Whether funds (grants/subsidies)
received/receivable for specific schemes from
central/ state agencies were properly
accounted for/ utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

The company has received a
grant of Rs. 5 Crores from the
Gujarat  State Government.
According to the information and
explanation given by the
management the grant received
from Government of Gujarat has
been properly accounted for in
the books of accounts. The
Provision of Rs.40 Lakhs has
been made in books against the
grant received.
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(A joint Venture of Airport Authority of India - Government of Gujarat

National Industrial Corridor Development & Implementation Trust)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

Note
No.

As at
31.03.2023

As at

31.03.2022

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

(c) Money received against share warrants

15,151.00
3,275.92

15,151.00
2,716.51

Sub Total

18,426.92

17,867.51

(ii) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
(iii) Non Current liabilities

(a) Long-term Borrowings

(b) Defferred Tax Liabilites (Net)

(c) Other Long Term Liabilities

(d) Long Term Provisions

Sub -Total

(iv) Current liabilities

(a) Short term Borrowings

(b) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of MSME
Total outstanding dues of creditors
Other than MSMEs

(c) Other Current Liabilities

(d) Short Term Provisions

3.26
35.80
1,858.91
1.49

5.96
209.32
12.24
6.25

Sub -Total

1,899.46

233.77

Total

20,326.38

18,115.96
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Il. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible Assets

- Property, Plant & Equipment

- Intangible Assets

- Capital Work in Progress

- Intagible assets under development

(b) Non-current Investments

(c) Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

(d) Long Term Loans and Advances

(e) Other non-current Assets

Annual Report 2022-23

48.42
0.03
2,606.26

1.00

0.25

53.59
0.03
1,003.13

0.25

Sub Total

2,655.96

1,057.80

(2) Current assets

(a) Current Investments

(b) Inventories

(c) Trade Receivables

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(e) Short-term Loans and Advance
(f) Other Current Assets

529.94
16,389.83
750.65

36.06
16,240.24
781.86

Sub Total

17,670.42

17,058.16

Total

20,326.38

18,115.96

Significant Accounting Policies and to Accounts (Notes 1 to 42)

As per our report of even date
For Joy Baxi & Associates

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
FRM Reg. No.:115785W

Sd/-

Joy A. Baxi

Partner

Membership No. 046021
UDIN: 23046021BGQHTL677

Date: 09/08/2023
Place: Gandhinagar

Dholera International Airport Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Vijay Nehra Komal Bhatt
Managing Director Director
(DIN: 05118716) (DIN: 09453556)

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Manoj Kumar Priya Makhija
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
PAN : AUINPG8003D M. No. : 64227
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(A joint Venture of Airport Authority of India - Government of Gujarat

National Industrial Corridor Development & Implementation Trust)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31%* March 2023
(Rs. in Lakh)
Year 2021-22

Note | Year 2022-23

No.

Particulars

Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Income (I+ll)
Expenses
(a) Cost of Materials Consumed -
(b) Purchase of Stock in Trade -
(c) Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, work- -
in- Progress and Stock-in-Trade
(d) Employee Benefit Expenses
(e) Finance Costs
(f) Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
(g9) Administrative and Other Expenses
Total expenses
Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary item and
Tax (I1l-1V)
Exceptional Item (Prior Period Expenses)
Profit before Tax (V-VI)
Tax Expenses
a) Current Tax
b) Tax related to earlier
c) Deferred Tax
Profit for the Period form Continuing Operations
(VII-VII)
Earnings per Equity Share
a) Basic 21
b) Diluted
Significant Accounting Policies and to Accounts (Note 1 to 42)
As per our report of even date
For Joy Baxi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRM Reg. No.:115785W

Sd/-
Joy A. Baxi

889.24 920.21

889.24

15

633.45 47.37
9.39
73.88
130.64
789.57

10.01
66.07
139.54
749.70

0.43
789.14

(2.66)
752.36

193.15 203.40

(0.38)
584.36

(0.20)
559.41

0.37
0.37

0.39
0.39

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dholera International Airport Company Limited

Sd/-
Vijay Nehra

Sd/-
Komal Bhatt

Partner

Membership No. 046021

UDIN: 23046021BGQHTL677
Sd/-

Managing Director
(DIN: 05118716)

Dr. Manoj Kumar

Date: 09/08/2023
Place: Gandhinagar
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Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AUNPG8003D

Director

(DIN:

09453556)

Sd/-

Priya Makhija

Compa
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ny Secretary
0. : 64227




DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED Annual Report 2022-23

Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(A joint Venture of Airport Authority of India - Government of Gujarat

National Industrial Corridor Development & Implementation Trust)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars Year 2022-23 Year 2021-22

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Net Profit bfore tax and Extra Ordinary
Items

Add Back :
(a) Deprciation

Non Cash Expenses
Deduct :

(a) Reversal of Excess Depreciation - -
(b) Interest Income (887.71) (920.11)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING (125.34) (121.58)
CAPITAL CHANGES

Adjustment for Working Capital Changes :
(a) (Increase)/ Decrease in Investories - -

(b) (Increase)/ Decrease in Trade and Other (7.63) (31.96)
Receivables/Current Asset

(c) (Increase)/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (205.14) (100.04)

(d) Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current 1,846.81 0.78
Liabilities & Provisions

CASH GENERATED FORM OPERATING 1,508.70 (252.80)
ACTIVITIES

Deduct :
Direct Taxes Paid (Net) (201.23) (204.56)

NET CASH (USED IN) OPERATING 1,307.47 (457.36)
ACTIVITIES (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Outflow :
(a) Purchase of Fixed Assets and CWIP (1,579.06) 58.24

(b) (Invest) Withdrawal of Inter Corporate (138.77) (758.64)
Deposit
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Inflow:
(a) Interest Received 1,037.33

NET CASH FLOW IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (B)

(c) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES :

(a) Issure of share capital

(b) increase in Share Capital Contributon
(Share Application Money)

NET CASH FLOW IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (C)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH (120.43)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+b+C)

ADD :CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AS 141.81
AT 1ST APRIL

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AS AT 21.38
31ST MARCH

Note:

(a) Previous year's data regrouped and rearranged where ever necessary.

(b)  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as
set out in the Accounting Standard- 3 Cash Flow Statements”.

(c) Cash and cash Equivalents comprises of  As at 31.03.2023 (Rs) As at 31.03.2022(Rs)
Cash in hand -
Balance with banks
Current Account
Saving Account
Sweep Deposit
Investment in Liquid Deposit
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Cash Flow Statement

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Joy Baxi & Associates For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Dholera International Airport Company Limited
FRM Reg. No.:115785W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Joy A. Baxi Vijay Nehra Komal Bhatt
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046021 (DIN: 05118716) (DIN: 09453556)
UDIN: 23046021BGQHTL677
Sd/- Sd/-

Dr. Manoj Kumar Priya Makhija
Place: Gandhinagar Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: 09/08/2023 PAN : AUONPG8003D M. No. : 64227
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited

(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Block No. 1, A-2, Wing, 3rd Floor Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector-10 Gandhinagar-382010

(Ajoint Venture of Airport Authority of India - Government of Gujarat
National Industrial Corridor Development & Implementation Trust)

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2023

Note : 1. Company Information

The Dholera Interanational Airport Company Limited was incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 on 20™ Day of January, 2012 and received Certificate of
Business Commencement on 9" day of February, 2012. The Company is a Joint
Venture of the Airports Authority of India (AAl), The Government of Gujarat (GOG) and
National Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) wherein
51% of paid-up equity share capital of the Company is held by the Airports Authority of
India, 33% of paid-up equity share capital is held by Government of Gujarat and
16% of paid-up equity share capital is held by National Industrial Corridor Development
Implementation Trust (NICDIT) By virtue of holding of the majority of equity shares, the
company is a subsidiary of the Airports Authority of India.

The principal business of the Company is to develop and operate a greenfield
international airport at Village Navagam, Taluka Dholera, District Ahmedabad, Gujarat.
The construction work commenced in July 2022.

Note : 2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
on accrual and going concern basis and in compliance with, in all material
aspects, with applicable accounting principles in India, the applicable Accounting
Standards notified under Section 133 read with MCA notification vide 15/2013
and other relevant provision of the companies Act, 2013.

All assets and liabilities are presented as current or non-current ones as per the
criteria set out in the schedule Ill asper Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company has adopted a twelve months period for the purpose of
classification of assets and liabilities in current and non-current categories.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires estimates and assumptions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as on the date of the
financial statements and reported amount of revenue and expenses during the
reported period. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized
in the period in which the resultis known or materialized.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes,
trade discounts and rebates and include amounts added on revaluation, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property, Plant
and Equipment comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, net
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange
rate variations attributable to the assets, if any.

Subsequent expenses related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are
added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits beyond its
previously assessed standards of performance.

Property, Plant and Equipment which are not ready for their intended use as on the
date of the balance sheet are disclosed under "Capital Work-in-Progress".

Intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes
less accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. The cost of an
intangible assets comprises of purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost
directly attributableto bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use and net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Depreciation and Amortisation :

Depreciation on Property, Plants and Equipment is provided on a pro-rata basis on

the Straight Line Method (SLM) on estimated useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to

the Companies Act, 2013 so as to charge off the cost of assets to the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on Intangible Assets is calculated on a pro-rata basis on the Straight
Line Method (SLM) on estimated useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the
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Companies Act, 2013 taking three years as useful life of the asset in absence of
information in the Companies Act, 2013.

Taxes on Income:

Provision of current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable Income for the
period and in accordance with the provisions under the income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax resulting from “Timing” differences between taxable and accounting
income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. The deferred tax asset is
recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable/virtual
certainty that the asset will be realized in future.

Revenue Recognition

Interest on Deposit held with GSFS/Banks/Financial Institutions is recognized when the
right to receivethe income is established.

Revenue Expenditure

Operating expenses of the current year are charged to the revenue in the
same year.

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of balance sheet as well as cash flow
statement comprise of Cash in hand, Cash at bank/ demand deposits, time deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less and sweep deposits with banks/
Fls/ GSFS which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash Flow
Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the
Accounting Standard 3 — ‘Cash Flow Statements’.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when there exists a present obligation as a result of

past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Earning per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average
number of equity share outstanding during the year. Diluted Earnings per
Shareis calculated by dividing net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
company after adjustment for diluted earnings by the average number of weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
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2.11 Foreign Exchange Transactions

Accounting Standard-11 is not applicable to Company.

NIL
NIL
Value of Material Imported on CIF Basis:NIL
NIL

Expenditure in Foreign Currency:

Earnings in Foreign Currency:

Foreign Travelling Expenditures:

Investments

Annual Report 2022-23

Accounting Standard-13 Accounting for Investment is not applicable to Company as

there is NIL investment.

NOTE :3
A. Share Capital

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Authorized
20,00,00,000 Equity Shares, Rs.10 Each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

15,15,10,000 Equity Shares, Rs. 10/- each (Previous
Year -15,15,10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

20,000.00

15,151.00

20,000.00

15,151.00

Total

15,151.00

15,151.00

B. (B)Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at

the end of the reporting period :

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Number of Equity Shares at the beginning

Add : Number of Equity Shares issued
during the period

Less : Number of Equity Shares bought
back during the period

15,15,10,000
NIL

15,15,10,000
NIL

15,15,10,000
NIL

15,15,10,000
NIL

Total

15,15,10,000

15,15,10,000

(C)

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per

Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares

share. Each holder of the Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
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In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all
preferencial amounts in proportion of their shareholding.

Details of equity shares held by the holding company or its subsidiaries or its

(E)

Note 4 :

associates,

Particulars

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Airports Authority of India

7,72,70,000

7,72,70,000

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity shares of the Company.

Name of the Equity Shareholders

As at
31/03/2023

As at
31/03/2022

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Airports Authority of India

7,72,70,000

7,72,70,000

National Industrial Corridor Development &
Implementation Trust (NICDIT)

2,42,40,000

2,42,40,000

Honourable Governor of Gujarat (Govt. of
Guijarat)

5,00,00,000

5,00,00,000

Total

15,15,10,000

15,15,10,000

Other disclosures relating to Share Capital

Schedule Il :

required as per Revised

Particulars

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

Aggregate number of Equity Shares
attached on fully paid up by way of
bonus shares during the period of
five years immediately preceding the
Balance Sheet data.

NIL

NIL

Aggregate numbe of Equity Share
bought back during the period of five
years immediately preceding the
Balance Sheet date

Reserves and Surplus :

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

Surplus
Balances at the beginning of the year

Add : Profit after tax for the year

2,716.51
559.41

2,132.15
584.36

3,275.92

2,716.51
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Note 5 : Long Term Provision (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Provision of CSR 14.68
Total 14.68

Note 6 : Trade Payables (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at As at
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 3.26 5.96
Enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 35.80 209.32
Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Total 39.06 215.28

The above information has been provided as available with the company to the

extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available

with the company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act.

Trade Payables Aging Schedule (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from invoice date

Less than 1-2 year | 2-3 years | More than Total
1 year 3 years

As at 31% March 2023

Total Outstanding dues of 3.26
MSMEs

Total Outstanding dues of 35.80
creditors other than MSMEs

Disputed dues of Creditors of
MSMEs

Disputed dues of Creditors other
than MSMEs

Total
As at 31% March 2022

Total Outstanding dues of
MSMEs

Total Outstanding dues of
creditors other than MSMEs

Disputed dues of Creditors of
MSMEs
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Disputed dues of Creditors other
than MSMEs

Total 215.28

Note 7 : Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at 31/03/2023 As at 31/03/2022
GST Payable under RCM 0.01 -
TDS Payable- (Income Tax) 28.43 5.11
TDS Payable - (GST) 0.11 3.70
Security Deposit 12.54 3.02
Withheld Amount 0.39 -
Contribution to PF Payable 0.12 0.12
Professional Tax Payable 0.03 0.10

Payable to Employees 1.85 0.19

Provision for Expenses -
Assistance from GoG (For Royalty) 500.00
Provision for Outstanding Liabilities 1,315.43
Total 1,858.91

Note 8 : Short Term Provision :
(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at As at
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Income Tax Provision (Net of TDS and Advance Tax) - 4.90
Other Provisions 1.49 1.35

Total 1.49 6.25
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Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars
reu Less than 1 year

1-2 years | 2-3 Years

More than
3 Years

Total

As at 31st March 2023
Development of Greenfield
Airport at Dholera

1,603.13

118.46 213.26

671.41

2,606.26

TOTAL 1,603.13

118.46 213.26

671.41

2,606.26

As at 31st March 2022
Development of Greenfield
Airport at Dholera

118.46

213.26 109.13

562.28

1,003.13

TOTAL 118.46

213.26 109.13

562.28

1,003.13

Note 10: Deferred Tax Asset

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at
31/03/2023

As at
31/03/2022

Deffered Tax on Depreciation

0.80

0.80

Component of Deferred Tax Assets

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at 01/04/2022

Amount Credited to
Profit and Loss Alc

As at

31/03/2023

Deferred tax liabilities/ (asset) in
relation to Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Asset

0.20

1.00

Total

0.20

Note 11: Other Non Current Assets

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

Security Deposit

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.25

Note 12: Cash & Bank Balances

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

A. Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash on Hand
Balances With Bank
Current Account
Saving Account

Sweep Fixed Deposit
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Liquid Deposit with GSFS Ltd.
Total
B. Others Bank Balances
CSR Account

DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
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14.68

14.68

Total

36.06

Note 13: Short Term Loans and Advances

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

Input Tax Credit (GST)
Inter Corporate Deposit with GSFS Ltd.

Income Tax (Net of Income Tax provision,
TDS and Advance Tax)

Airport Authority of India, Jodhpur
(Gratuity Cont)

Other Advances

42.57
16,342.31
3.18

1.55

0.20

36.09
16,203.54

0.61

16,389.83

16,240.24

Note 14: Other Current Assets

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at 31/03/2023

As at 31/03/2022

Interest Accured on Deposit with GSFS Ltd.
Interest Accured on Bank Deposits

Prepaid Expenses

750.34

0.31

781.55

0.31

750.65

781.86

Note 15: Other Income

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

2022-23

2021-22

Interest Inocme - GSFS Ltd.

Interest Inocme - Bank Sweep Deposit

Interest Inocme - Bank Saving Account

Tender Fees
RTI Application Fee

Penalty / Recoveries from contractor/third
party
Miscellaneous Income

887.68
0.01
0.02
0.11
0.00
1.42

919.91
0.18
0.02
0.08
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Note 16: Employee Benefit Expenses (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Payments to Employee on GoG Deputation 11.57

Payments to Employee on AAl Deputation & 35.80
Contract

Total 47.37

Note 17: Administrative and Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Audit Fees (Statutory)

Advertisement Expenses

Audit Expenese

Bank Charges

Books & Periodicals

CAG Audit Expenses

Car Hire Charges

Computer maintenance & repairing expenses
Contract Labour Registration Charges

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
(Note 18)

Electricity Expenses

Event Management Expenses
Festival Expense

Honorarium

Intrest on Employee Cont to PT
Intrest on PF

Interest on Employer Cont to PT
Interest on late payment of TDS
Internal Audit Fees

Lease Rent

Legal Entity Identifier No.
Manpower Outsource Expenses
Meeting Expenses

License Renewal Expenses
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News letter Subscription Charges
Misc Office Exp.

Postage & Courier Expenses
Professional Fees

Professional Tax

Property Tax Expenses

Rent for hiring of Computers and Laptops
Repair & Maintenance (Others)
ROC Fees

Staff Welfare Expenses

Printing & Stationery Exp.
Subscription to Webex Software
Tea-Coffee Expenses

Telephone Expenses

Water Espenses

Xerox & Printing Expenses

Total

Note 18 : Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

(A) Gross amount required to be spent by company during the year 2022-23 -
Rs.18.06/- Lakh (2021-22- Rs. 15.04 /- Lakh

(B) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 2022-23 is Rs.18.06/-
Lakh on ongoing project and the CSR Expense has been made in this Financial

Year.

(C)  Amount Spent during the year on : (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

| Acquistition of Capital Assets - -
Il Revenue Expenditure 18.06 15.04
TOTAL 18.06 15.04

Excess Paid - -

(D) The Company has transferred the CSR amount of Rs. 33.10/- Lakh for the FY 2021-
22 and 2022-23 to DDO, Ahmedabad in March 2023 for the ongoing CSR projects.
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(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

2022-23

2021-22

Professional Fees

Reversal of ITC Claimed

Telephone Expense

Postage & Courier Expense

Excess Gratuity Contribution reversed

1.34

0.00
(0.01)
(3.99)

(2.66)

Note 20: Tax Expenses

(Amount in Lakh)

Particulars

2022-23

2021-22

Income Tax Provision of Current Year
Income Tax Refund for the FY 2021-22

193.59
(0.44)

203.40

193.15

203.40

Note 21: Earnings Per Share

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

2022-23

2021-22

Profit/ Loss After Tax (Rs)

Add/(Less) : Prior Period Adjustments (Net) (Rs.)
Profit /Loss for The Reporting Period (Rs.)
Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Weighted Average Number of Equity Share of

Rs.10/ each
Basic EPS
Diluted EPS

559.41
(2.66)
556.75
15,15,10,000
15,15,10,000

0.37
0.37

584.36

0.43

584.79
15,15,10,000
15,15,10,000

0.39
0.39

* Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity
sharesholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Note 22: Payment to Auditors

(Amount in Lakh)

Particulars

2022-23

2021-22

(i) As auditor
Statutory Auditor : Audit Fees

(ii) For Taxation matters
(iii) For Company Law Matters
(iv) For Others
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Note 23 : Leasing Arrangement

The Government of Gujarat has allotted 1426.46 Hectors and 75.05 Hectors of open land
on lease for a token rent of Rs. 1/- per annum at Village Navagam, Taluka Dholera Dist.,
Ahmedabad for a period of 30 years, which is extendable for further 30 years. As per
Accounting Standard AS 12 "Government Grants", this being a non-monetary asset, the
said land is recorded in the books of account at a nominal value.

The name of the Company has been entered in the revenue records of the Government of
Gujarat as a lessee, however, as per the general practice of the Government of Gujarat,
no lease agreement has been entered into. Accounting Standard -19 ‘Leases’ is not
applicable to company as there is lease agreement to use land.

Note: 24  Title Deeds of Immovable Property Not Held in the Name of the
Company

The Company does not own any immovable property other than leasehold land allotted by
the Government of Gujarat.

Note : 25 Employees Benefits

There is no permanent employee of the Company. The majority of the employees are
provided by the Airports Authority of India on deputation / deemed deputation basis while
the rest are directly hired by the Company on a fixed - term contract basis. Some tasks are
carried out by outsourced manpower i.e. those supplied by a third party under an annual
contract.

Retirement benefits in respect of employees of the Airports Authority of India like
contributions to the Provident Fund, Benevolent Fund, GSLIS, Gratuity, Leave Salary, etc
are reimbursed to the AAI EPF Trust and Airports Authority of India. The provident fund in
respect of fixed term i.e. contractual employees are deposited to the EPFO by the
Company. Hence, no liability arises as per AS-15.

Note 26 : Exemption from payment of tax on building and land

Panchayat, Rural Housing & Rural Development Department, Government of Gujarat has
granted exemption from payment of taxes on Building and Land within the limits of village
Navagam as per Section 200(1) clause (1) of Gujarat Panchayat Act, 1993 vide Resolution
No. PRR/112019/128/CH dated 08.09.2019 to develop Dholera International Airport.

Note : 27  Property Tax of Office Space at Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar

Office space has been allotted by the Government of Gujarat at Block No. 1, 3™ Floor, A2
Wing, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar, Gujarat for the corporate office of the Company.
While no rent is being charged for the office space, proportionate electricity expenses are
being reimbursed by the Company to the Government of Gujarat and property tax of the
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office space is being paid by the Company based on the bills raised by Gandhinagar
Municipal Corporation.

Note : 28  Approval to Revised Project Cost by Government of India

The project cost for the proposal of the Development of New Greenfield Airport at Dholera
(Phase-1) was revised from INR 2360 Crore to INR 1375 Crore in the 38" Board meeting
held on 06™ August 2021 which was further revised in the 39" Board Meeting held on 02™
December 2021 to INR 1,305 Crore. The reduction in cost was done for improvement in
financial viability parameters i.e. DSCR, IRR, and ERR for obtaining PIB and CCEA
approvals by reducing the size and scope of facilities such as terminal building, CNS
equipment, etc, and other measures on the recommendation of AAI.

The proposal for the Development of New Greenfield Airport at Dholera (Phase-l) at a cost
of INR 1,305 Crore was recommended by the Public Investment Board (PIB), Department
of Expenditure, Government of India in December 2021 to the Cabinet Committee of
Economic Affairs (CCEA) of Government of India for approval. The proposal was approved
by CCEA in June 2022.

Note : 29  Input Tax Credit on Goods and Services Tax

The Company has registered as a regular assessee under GST Act with effect from
01/09/2021. Subsequent to that date, the Company has claimed ITC on the various bills
received in respect of revenue and capital expenditures. The amount of deferred ITC
available as of the balance sheet date is INR 42.57/- Lakh to be utilized after the
commencement of operation at the airport. The above figure is subject to reconciliation
with the amount shown on GST portal.

Note : 30 Related Party Disclosures

Particulars As on 31.03.2023 | As on 31.03.2022

Contingent Liabilities Nil Nil

Commitments: 74247.32 75100.56
Estimated value of contracts remaining to
be executed on capital accounts and not
provided for

Unspent CSR amount to the extent not Nil Nil
provided for
Total 74247.32 75100.56
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31.1 Name of related parties and description of relationship

Sr. Name of related party
No.

Type of Relationship

Remarks

Mr. Kiritkumar Jani

Chief Operating Officer

From 01/11/2022

Dr. Manoj Kumar

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Ekta Shukla

Company Secretary

Upto 11/11/2022

Ms. Priya Makhija

Company Secretary

From 01/03/2023

Airports Authority of India

Holding Company

31.2 Transactions with related parties

Name of related party

Nature of
Transactions

FY 2022-23

FY 2021-22

Amount
(Rs. In
Lakh)

Credit
Closing
Balance

(Rs. In
Lakh)

Amount
(Rs. In
Lakh)

Credit
Closing
Balance

(Rs. In
Lakh)

Mr. Kiritkumar Jani, COO

Pay and Allowances

NIL

NIL

Dr. Manoj Kumar CFO

Pay and Allowances

0.19

0.19

Mr. Shailesh G. Patel CFO

Pay and Allowances

NIL

NIL

Ms. Ekta Shukla CS

Pay and Allowances

NIL

NIL

Ms. Priya Makhija, CS

Pay and Allowances

NIL

NIL

Reimbursement of

23.48

194.94

Project Engineer’s
Pay and Allowances

Reimbursement of
Expense on
Preparation of DPR

Airports Authority of India

Reimbursement of
Expense on
Preparation of JV
Agreement

Reimbursement of
Terminal Banefits in
respect of AAIl Staff
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Si
No

Note : 32

Ratio

Numerator

Denominator

Variance

Reason for
Variance in
the Ratio by
more than
25%

Current Ratio

Current
Assets

Current
Liabilities

-87.26%

Making of
Provisions for
Project
Expenses
resulting in
high increase
in Current
Liabilities

Debt
Ratio

Equity

Total Debt

Shareholders’
Equity

No

debt,

applicable

hence not

Debt Service
Coverage
Ratio

Earnings for
Debt Service

Debt Service

No

debt,

applicable

hence not

Return
Equity

Profit
Taxes

After

Average
Shareholders’
Equity

3.69%

3.86%

Inventory
Turnover Ratio

Cost of
Goods Sold

Average
Inventory

No

inventory maintained,

hence not applicable

Trade
Receivables
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit
Sales

Average Trade
Receivables

Operation
commenced,
applicable

not
hence

yet
not

Trade
Payables
Turnover Ratio

Net
Purchases

Average Trade
Payables

Operation
commenced,
applicable

not
hence

yet
not

Net Capital
Turnover Ratio

Net Sales

Average
Working
Capital

Operation
commenced,
applicable

not
hence

yet

Net Profit Ratio

Profit
Taxes

After

Net Sales

Operation
commenced,
applicable

not
hence

Return
Capital
Employed

EBIT

Capital
Employed

4.08%

4.41%

Return
Investments

on

Earnings
from
Investments

Investment

No investments, hence not
applicable
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Note : 33 Particulars of Transactions with Struck-Off Companies

No transaction has been entered into with companies struck off under Section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013, or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Note : 34 Details of Benami Property Held

The Company does not hold any benami property and no proceedings have been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Note : 35 Compliance with Number of Layers of Companies

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture companies. Hence
provisions of Section 2 Clause 87 of the Companies Act read with Companies (Restriction
on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable to the Company.

Note : 36 Compliance with Approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements

The Company has not prepared any Scheme of Arrangements in terms of Sections 230 to
237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note : 37 Utilization of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium

37.1 During the year, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

37.2 During the year, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or

entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note : 38 Impact of Covid-19 on Business of Company
During the year, there was no impact of Covid-19 on the business of the Company.

Note : 39 Rounding off of Financial Figures
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In pursuance of amendment in Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013, financial figures
are rounded off to the nearest lakh Rupees except for the number of shares and EPS.
Note : 40 Regrouping of Previous Year Figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform
to the current year's classification.

Note : 41 Events Occurred after Balance Sheet Date

No significant subsequent events have occurred after the balance sheet date that would
require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date.

Note : 42  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 9™ August

2023. Note to Accounts 1 to 42 form an integral part of financial statements.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

For JOY BAXI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:115785W
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
JOY A BAXI Vijay Nehra Komal Bhatt
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 046021 (DIN: 05118716) (DIN: 09453556)
UDIN: 2304602IBGQHTL6776
Sd/- Sd/-

Dr. Manoj Kumar Priya Makhija
Place: Gandhinagar Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Date: 09/08/2023 PAN : AUINPG8003D M. No. : 64227
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited
(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)

Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered Address :
E-mail Id : Folio No /Client ID : DP ID:

I/We, being the member/shareholder of Shares of the above named
company, hereby appoint;

Name : E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature :

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
11"MAnnual General Meeting (Adjourned) of the company, to be held on the at

AM/PM Gandhinagar, Gujarat and at any adjournment thereof in respect
of such resolutions as are indicated below:
Resolution No

Sr. | Resolution(S)

No.

1. Adoption of option of the statement of Profit and Loss,
Balance Sheet report of Director's and Auditor's for the
financial year ending on 31st March 2023
* Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form.

Affix Revenue

Stamps
Signed this day of 2023.

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder Signature of the shareholder
across Revenue Stamp

Note:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

The proxy need not be a member of the company.
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited
(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

11" Annual General Meeting on

Full name of the members attending

(In block capitals)

Ledger Folio No./Client ID No.

No. of shares held:

Name of Proxy

(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member)

| hereby record my presence at the 11"Annual General Meeting of the DIACL to be

held on at Gandhinagar, Guijarat.

(Member’s /Proxy’s Signature)

Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting
since further copies will not be available.
The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the

Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the
meeting.

A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by Proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint

holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
Register of Members.

The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member
from attending in person and voting at the meeting.
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Dholera International Airport Company Limited
(CIN: U62100GJ2012SGC068709)

Consent by Share Holders for Shorter Notice
[As per Section 101(1)]
The Companies Act, 2013

To

The Board of Directors

Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL)
3rd Floor, A-2, Wing, Block No. 1,

Karmayogi Bhavan, Sector-10/A

Gandhinagar, Gujarat — 382 010.

, holding

Equity Share of Rs.10 each in the company hereby give consent, pursuant to
Section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold 11" Annual General Meeting of
Dholera International Airport company Limited (DIACL) on at the

Gandhinagar, Gujarat or any adjourned thereof at a Shorter Notice.

Signature: ...
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